
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Fields

AGENDA December 16, 2015

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Fields

Presentation Commissioner Marty Haynes will honor the Loftis Middle School Beta Club Members.

Presentation Update on Correctional Facilities Project by PFM, Inc.

Minutes Recessed Meeting - November 25, 2015

Minutes Agenda Session - November 25, 2015

Minutes Regular Meeting - December 2, 2015

Report Appointment of John J. Cain and reappointment of Bill McGriff and Fred L. Morgan as
Commissioners of the Northwest Utility District Board of Commissioners.

Report Criminal Court Clerk's Report - August, September and October 2015

Report Order of Designation Planning Commission - Todd Leamon December 14, 2015

Res. No. 1215-19 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, and the bonds and
oaths of notaries previously elected.

Res. No. 1215-20 A Resolution Granting the Approval of a Special Permit for a Single-Wide Manufactured Home
on a tract of land located at 4603 Clonts Road.

Res. No. 1215-21 A Resolution Granting Approval of a Mandatory Referral, pursuant to T.C.A. 13-4-104, for the
abandonment of the 11000 block of Bauxite Road.

Res. No. 1215-22A A Resolution to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-2 Residential District, property located
at 2618 Ooltewah-Ringgold Road.

Res. No. 1215-22B A Resolution to Rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single Family Residential District,
property located at 2618 Ooltewah-Ringgold Road.

Res. No. 1215-23 A Resolution to Amend the Hamilton County Zoning Regulations within Article IV, Flood Hazard
District to include the adopted and updated National Flood Insurance Program (nfip) and Flood
Insurance Rate Map Reference Numbers.

Res. No. 1215-24 A Resolution to Amend the Hamilton County Zoning Regulations, Article VII, Section 300(i)(1)(a)
in reference to fees for the Board of Zoning Appeals Public Hearing.

Res. No. 1215-25 A Resolution approving the expenditure of up to three thousand one hundred ninety five dollars
($3,195.00) from discretionary bond funds (as allotted to District Three) to purchase a security
system for Hixson Middle School.

Res. No. 1215-26 A Resolution making an appropriation to AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga, Inc.,
in the amount of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as
allotted to District Two.

Res. No. 1215-27 A Resolution making an appropriation to AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga, Inc.,
in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as
allotted to District One.

Res. No. 1215-28 A Resolution making an appropriation to AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga, Inc.,
in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as
allotted to District Nine.

Res. No. 1215-29 A Resolution making an appropriation to AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga, Inc.,
in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as
allotted to District Seven.



Res. No. 1215-30 A Resolution making an appropriation to AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga, Inc.,
in the amount of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as
allotted to District Four.

Res. No. 1215-31 A Resolution making an appropriation to Boy Scouts of America Cherokee Area Council, Inc., in
the amount of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary
monies, as allotted to District Four.

Res. No. 1215-32 A Resolution making an appropriation to Churchville Neighborhood Association, Inc., in the
amount of one thousand five hundred dollars ($1,500.00) from General Fund discretionary
monies, as allotted to District Four.

Res. No. 1215-33 A Resolution making an appropriation to A Better Tomorrow, Inc., in the amount of two thousand
dollars ($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District Four.

Res. No. 1215-34 A Resolution making an appropriation to Olivet Baptist Church of Chattanooga, Inc., in the
amount of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary
monies, as allotted to District Four.

Res. No. 1215-35 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor and County Clerk to enter into an agreement with
Business Information Systems (BIS) to provide payment card processing for the County Clerk’s
Motor Vehicle Titling and Registration System and authorizing the purchase and installation of
twenty-seven (27) EMV devices with stands in the amount of $24,894.00 and to amend the
County Clerk's General Fund Operating Budget from previously unbudgeted funds in the amount
of $24,894.00 and authorizing the County Mayor and County Clerk to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1215-36 A Resolution to declare the Mayfield Annex Property located at 123 East 7th Street, owned by
Hamilton County, as surplus, to accept a proposal from Lamp Post Properties, and to authorize
the County Mayor to negotiate, enter into and execute a Real Estate Purchase Agreement for
the sale price of $200,000 (net proceeds to Hamilton County) and to sign all closing documents
necessary to convey said property.

Res. No. 1215-37 A Resolution for Chattanooga-Hamilton County Rescue Service to sell a 1999 GMC Suburban
which is co-titled with Hamilton County Government and authorizing the County Mayor to sign
any documents necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1215-38 A Resolution to amend the "Master List of Roads and Speed Limits" so as to accept the
following district road and to establish a speed limit therefore: Boulder Creek Trail.

Res. No. 1215-39 A Resolution to amend the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” so as to accept the following
district roads and to establish speed limits therefore: Hollyhock Lane, and an extension of Trout
Lily Drive.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 

1 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  March 25, 2015 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 25th day of November, 2015, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. Deputy 

County Clerk Brooke Weaver called the roll of the County Commission and the 

following, constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner 

Graham, Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and 

Chairman Bankston. Total present – 9.  Total absent -0. 

 

 Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Beck introduced Pastor Mitch McClure, Pastor of Middle Valley 

Church of God and Former County Commissioner, who gave the invocation.  

Commissioner Beck led in the pledge to the flag. 

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 

2 
 

Chairman Bankston announced that there was not any scheduled business for 

the Recessed Meeting and asked if anyone had any announcements. 

 

 Being no further business Chairman Bankston declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

 

      

     Respectfully submitted: 

 

 
      
     _______________________________ 
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

 

Approved: 

 

 
______ 
Date  Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  November 25, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 25th day of November, 2015, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. Deputy  

Clerk Brooke Weaver called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston.  Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 2

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered 

as follows: 

 The Trustee’s monthly and excess fee reports for October 2015 would be 
submitted for the record. 

 Quarterly Fee Office reports ending August 31, 2015 would be submitted for the 
record. 

 The Juvenile Court Clerk’s reports for August and September 2015 would be 
submitted for the record. 

 Resolution No. 1215-1 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

 Resolution Nos. 1215-15 through 1215-18 were assigned to the Finance 
Committee, chaired by Commissioner Boyd. 

 Resolution Nos. 1215-2 through 1215-14 were heard by a Committee of the 
Whole. 

 

Chairman Bankston stated that Resolution Nos. 1215-2 through 1215-14 would 

now be heard by the Committee of the Whole. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1215-2 

 

Commissioner Bankston spoke regarding this item, which appropriates five 

thousand dollars in general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district nine, to 

Harrison Recreational Booster Club to assist with utility bills. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 3

In response to Commissioner Mackey question, it was stated that the county 

doesn’t normally pay utilities for county parks. 

 

Commissioner Graham questioned if this was proper use of discretionary money. 

He stated that it was his understanding that discretionary funds were to be invested in 

projects that last at least fifteen years. 

 

Don Allen, Administrator of General Services reported the River Park, Chester 

Frost Park, and Enterprise Nature Park are the only parks that Hamilton County pays 

utilities for. The County does not own or maintain Harrison Park. 

 

Commissioner Beck noted that the Harrison facility is a great asset to the 

community and they serve fifteen hundred kids a year. To clear up any confusion about 

how the Booster Club allocates the funds, Commissioner Beck stated the money will be 

placed in the organization’s general fund. How the organization expenses the funds is 

truly up to them.  

 

Mayor Coppinger spoke about similar nonprofit 501c3 associations in Hamilton 

County. He reminded everyone that county funded nonprofit organizations are required 

to file a copy of their annual report of business affairs and transactions and the 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 4

proposed use of the county funds. He made positive comments regarding the work of 

the Harrison Association. 

 

Commissioner Boyd spoke in support of funding creditable nonprofit 

organizations that positively impact and reinvest in the community. He pointed out the 

discretionary spending policy no longer requires funds to be used on projects that have 

a fifteen year life expectancy. He informed the Commission that the Finance Committee 

will begin reviewing and making recommendations regarding discretionary spending 

after the Holidays. 

  

Commissioner Mackey spoke highly of former commissioners and the policies 

they set in place. While he is not against reviewing policies, he reminded everyone that 

the issue has already been discussed several times. He recommended everyone move 

past discretionary spending policies. 

  

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1215-3 

 

Commissioner Fields spoke regarding this item, which appropriates five thousand 

dollars in general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district two, to Signal 

Mountain Lions Charity to assist with the purchase of a PlusOptix Vision Screener. If 

approved, the new screener will take the place of out dated inefficient equipment. The 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 5

charity focuses on screening preschool aged children. Vanderbilt University analyzes 

the data and suggests a treatment plan for the parents to follow. Commissioner Fields 

stated that he is a current member of the Signal Mountain Lions Club.  

  

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1215-4 

  

Commissioner Smedley spoke regarding this item, which appropriates one 

thousand dollars in general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district seven, to 

Scenic Cities Beautiful Commission to assist with the beautification of Heritage Park.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1215-5 

  

Commissioner Fairbanks spoke regarding this item, which appropriates twelve 

thousand three hundred dollars in general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to 

district one, to Mowbray Volunteer Fire Department to assist with the purchase of a 

Polaris Ranger all-terrain vehicle. The all-terrain vehicle will assist in off road rescues 

that can’t be accessed by a standard sized vehicle. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 6

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1215-6 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks spoke regarding this item, which appropriates six 

thousand dollars in general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district one, to 

Soddy Daisy Food Bank to assist with operational expenses.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

PRESENTATION: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1215-8 

 

Commissioner Boyd spoke regarding this item, which appropriates ten thousand 

dollars in general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district eight, to Girls 

Incorporated of Chattanooga to assist with the Girls Camp program. He introduced Bea 

Lurie, President of Girls Inc. and asked her to approach the podium and give her 

presentation.  

 

Mrs. Lurie gave a detailed presentation about Girls Inc. impact in Hamilton 

County. Topics of interest covered were how the organization inspires girls to be smart, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 7

strong, bold, healthy, educated and independent. The organization strives to help girls 

improve academically, make smarter choices, develop leadership skills, and to stay 

focused on higher education. One hundred percent of girls in the high school 

afterschool programs have gone on to college since the organization began tracking in 

2007.  

 

Mrs. Lurie reported several statistical findings that have been measured since the 

early 1980’s. She explained in detail the organization’s ten thousand dollar funding 

request for camp programs.  The majority of girls impacted are from low-income and 

minority communities.  More than half of the achievement gap between lower and 

higher income youth is explained by unequal access to summer learning opportunities. 

Girls Inc. camps incorporate research and outcome-based curricula. Registration fees 

are required for the camps, but some families are not able to pay the full cost. Spring 

and fall break camps are one hundred dollars and summer camp is three hundred and 

fifty dollars. In closing she thanked the commission for their time and consideration of 

Commissioner Boyd’s request. 

 

A copy of the presentation was distributed to the commission and Clerk’s office.  

 

Commissioner Mackey thanked Ms. Lurie for reporting statistical research figures 

and not just anecdotes.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 8

 

Mayor Coppinger thanked Ms. Lurie for her presentation and spoke of his 

support for the organization. He thanked Girls Inc. for all the hard work they do to 

impact the lives of many girls in Hamilton County. Mayor Coppinger disclosed that he 

and his wife recently wrote a personal check to Girls Inc. 

 

PRESENTATION: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1215-7 

  

Commissioner Boyd spoke regarding this item, which appropriates ten thousand 

dollars in general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district eight, to First Things 

First to assist with the Dads Make a Difference Program. He introduced Julie 

Baumgardner, CEO of First Things First and Todd Agne, Senior Fathering Coordinator 

for First Things First and asked them to approach the podium and give their 

presentation.  

 

Mrs. Baumgardner, CEO and Mr. Agne spoke about “Dads Making a Difference”, 

a 13-week class offered by First Things First in order to assist men recently released 

from prison with education on the positive involvement of fathers. Ms. Baumgardner 

explained that the class was created as a way to prevent men that are behind on child 

support from going back into the penal system after their release. The course is 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 9

designed to assist with job placement, healthy relationship skills, and appropriate 

participation in legal matters involving children.  

 

 Mr. Agne spoke about the structure of the course. He explained that of the 

thirteen classes, seven are taught by subject matter experts in order to give the men 

specific insight that an educator might not be able to do. He added that many of the 

classes are small group based, and they incorporate visual learning and activity based 

learning. Mr. Agne reported statistics from Dads Making a Difference. It was noted that 

since 2011, 397 men have enrolled in the course, 168 men have graduated, 15 men 

have had court ordered visitations with their children increased, and there has been 135 

job placements. 5 of those men have been incarcerated post-graduation for child 

support issues. He added that because of the program the County has saved 

$4,429,200.00 in incarceration fees.  

 

 A copy of the presentation was given to members of the Commission and the 

Clerk’s office. Mr. Agne read from a reference letter from Juvenile Court Magistrate 

Kathy J. Clark. She described the class as the right blend of services and classes to 

make a lasting impact on fathers in our community.  

 

 Ms. Baumgardner added that the cost per participant in the program is $700 per 

person on average. It was noted that Mr. Agne continues to follow up with the men once 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 10

they have graduated from the program. She thanked members of the Commission for 

the opportunity to give their presentation.  

 

 Commissioner Beck expressed his desire to see more participants in the 

program. He thanked Mr. Agne and Ms. Baumgardner for the work they do.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Beck’s question, Mr. Agne reported that the 

organization works with employers that inform them of available job opportunities. He 

added that it is important to teach the men networking and interview skills so they are 

prepared in the future.  

 

 Mayor Coppinger thanked Ms. Baumgardner and Mr. Agne for the work they do 

to keep men out of the prison system. It was noted that First Things First does not 

receive funding from the City of Chattanooga.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Mackey’s question, Mr. Agne clarified that men that 

are incarcerated for child support do not necessarily have their driving and voting 

privileges suspended. He also explained that the majority of the men in the program are 

non-violent offenders.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 11

 Several Commissioners voiced their support for the organization and the work 

that Mr. Agne and Ms. Baumgardner do to keep men out of jail.   

 

 Mr. Agne clarified an earlier comment concerning violence among the men. He 

added that occasionally the men will approach him with issues regarding violence, and 

those issues are addressed as needed.  

 

PRESENTATION: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1215-9 

 

Commissioner Boyd spoke regarding this item, which appropriates two thousand 

dollars in general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district eight, to The Next 

Door, Inc., Inc. to assist with their program. . He introduced Cindy Dawson, 

Chattanooga Development and Volunteer Partnerships for The Next Door, Inc., Inc. and 

asked her to approach the podium and give her presentation.  

 

Mrs. Dawson gave an overview of the organization and how they provide 

transitional services for incarcerated women. The Next Door, Inc. Chattanooga is the 

only correction release center for women and their facility is located on the Moccasin 

Bend territory. The Next Door, Inc. offers a unique program in partnership with the 

Tennessee Department of Corrections (TDOC). Women served by The Next Door, Inc. 

in the Chattanooga area are currently incarcerated and receive short-term transitional 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 12

services that are rooted in evidence-based practices to address the needs of the 

women. 

 

Within months of release from incarceration, women are transported from prison 

to The Next Door, Inc. Chattanooga’s Correctional Release Center.  While at the 

Correctional Release Center, women work toward gaining job and life skills that will 

assist in a productive re-entry into society.  This Correctional Release Center is the first 

of its kind for the State of Tennessee and Department of Corrections, and is designed to 

equip these women for independent living, free from drug and alcohol abuse. 

 

The facility houses up to 42 women and the total women served to this date is 

340. An average of 218 women are released from state custody each month and 

without transitional services, many will re-enter society, become overcome by day-to-

day stressors related to family and work, fall back into old habits, commit new crimes 

similar to ones that originally took them to prison.  

 

A copy of the presentation was distributed to the Clerk’s office. 

 

Mayor Coppinger thanked Ms. Dawson for the presentation and spoke of his 

support for the organization. He thanked The Next Door, Inc., Inc. for all the hard work 

they do to impact the lives of many women in Hamilton County. Mayor Coppinger 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 13

disclosed that he and his wife recently wrote a personal check to The Next Door, Inc.. 

He noted that he was looking forward to revisiting the facility in the near future. 

 

In response to Commissioner Smedley’s question, Mrs. Dawson explained that 

TDOC selects potential inmates and screens them to see if they are a good match for 

The Next Door, Inc. TDOC then brings female inmates from Nashville’s TN Prison for 

Women to The Next Door, Inc., Inc. usually 4-6 months before their release date.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1215-10 

 

Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding this item, which appropriates one 

thousand dollars in general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district four, to 

Partnership for Families, Children and Adults, Inc. to assist with the I AM Ready Center. 

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1215-11 

 

Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding this item, which appropriates two 

thousand five hundred thirty three dollars in general fund discretionary monies, as 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 14

allotted to district four, to City of Chattanooga on behalf of Murray Hills Park to assist 

with needed improvements. 

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1215-12 

 

Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding this item, which appropriates two 

thousand dollars in general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district four, to One 

Hundred Black Men of Chattanooga, Inc. to assist with their scholarship fund. 

  

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1215-13 

 

Alecia Poe, Human Resources Director spoke regarding this item, which accepts 

the proposal of Dillard Elite Training by Design to provide onsite fitness class instruction 

support to the Hamilton County Wellness Center.  

 

In response to Commissioner Boyd’s question, Mrs. Poe clarified that the county 

pays $8.33 per participant up to twelve participants. Additional participants are $5.83 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 15

per person. Based on last year’s figures, it is anticipated that an average of 50 persons 

will participate.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1215-14 

 

Todd Leamon, Administrator of Hamilton County Public Work and County 

Engineer spoke regarding this item, which accepts the bid of Helton Construction 

Company, Inc. for construction of new additions to the existing Nolan Elementary 

School amounting to $4,500,000.00.  

 

The addition will included five classrooms, a CDC room, stem lab renovation, 

multipurpose room, daycare area, cafeteria expansion and two sets of restrooms, for a 

total of 16,419 square feet. 

 

It was noted that Justin Witt, Director of Maintenance and Operations for 

Hamilton County Department of Education was present in the audience for questions. 

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 16

Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee announced that the 

Finance Committee would be meeting in the Commission Room immediately after the 

Agenda Session. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

 Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission.  

 

 Members of the Commission, Attorney Taylor, and Mayor Coppinger wished 

everyone a safe and happy Thanksgiving.  

 

 Commissioner Graham thanked Pastor McClure for the invocation he gave at 

today’s meeting. He also thanked the representatives from Girls, Inc., First Things First, 

and The Next Door, Inc. for their presentations.  

 

Commissioner Graham spoke regarding a letter drafted by County Attorney 

Rheubin Taylor pertaining to a cigarette tax suggested to the Commission by the 

ArtsBuild Association. He stated the Attorney drafted the letter for Commissioners to 

review and sign if in agreement with the proposal being submitted to the Hamilton 

County Legislative Delegation. Commissioner Graham stated that he had not signed the 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 17

letter but had requested a copy of the letter. He added that he was concerned the 

document was in violation of the Sunshine Law. The County Attorney confirmed to 

Commissioner Graham that the Chairman had shredded the letter.  

 

 Chairman explained that six signatures were needed on the letter to bring the 

cigarette tax before the Commission for a vote. He added that the document was 

removed and shredded when there were not enough signatures in support of the tax.  

 

 Commissioner Boyd explained that such letters have been a common practice 

among the Commission for many years. He noted that Commissioner Graham signed a 

similar letter dated November 29, 2012 seeking the amendment of a 2009 law to grant 

the manufacturing of alcohol in Hamilton County. Commissioner Boyd also announced 

the death of one of his mentors, B.H. Yerbey, Jr., whom he described as a great friend, 

Christian, businessman, and philanthropist. He sent his well wishes to Mr. Yerbey’s 

family.  

 

 Commissioner Smedley introduced her mother, Brenda, and her two nieces, 

Emily and Audrey. She thanked them for attending today’s meeting. Commissioner 

Smedley also spoke about transparency in politics. She explained that she publicly 

polled her district and did radio interviews about the potential cigarette tax in order to 

obtain feedback and remain transparent.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2015 
 
 

 18

 

 Commissioner Beck announced the birth of his Great Grandson. Members of the 

Commission and Mayor Coppinger congratulated Commissioner Beck and gave him a 

round of applause.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 

Being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting adjourned 

until Wednesday, December 2nd at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      
      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 

           

__________   
Date      Clerk’s Initials 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

1 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  December 2, 2015 
 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 2nd day of December, 2015, a Regular 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Mackey, 

Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Bankston. Commissioner Beck arrived shortly 

after the roll call. Commissioner Haynes was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 

1. 

 

Chairman Bankston reported that Commissioner Haynes would not be present 

for today’s meeting. He also acknowledged that Commissioner Beck arrived after roll 

was called. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

2 

 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 

Commissioner Fields introduced Pastor Brian Cosby, Wayside Presbyterian 

Church, who gave the invocation. Commissioner Fields led in the pledge to the flag.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, that 

the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of November 11, 2015, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of November 11, 2015, and the Regular Meeting of November 18, 2015, be 

approved, treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed. The foregoing Motion 

was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner Haynes was absent. 

Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

3 

 

 

TRUSTEE MONTHLY REPORT 

  

The Trustee’s monthly report for October 2015 was submitted and made a matter 

of record. 

 

TRUSTEE EXCESS FEE REPORT 

  

The Trustee’s excess fee report for October 2015 was submitted and made a 

matter of record. 

 

FEE OFFICE REPORTS 

 

 Fee reports for the following constitutional officers were submitted and made a 

matter of record: 

 Clerk & Master – July 2015 through September 2015 
 Circuit Court Clerk – July 2015 through September 2015 
 Register of Deeds – July 2015 through September 2015 
 County Clerk – July 2015 through September 2015 
 

JUVENILE COURT CLERK REPORTS 

  

The Juvenile Court Clerk reports for August and September 2015 were submitted 

and made a matter of record. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

4 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-1  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 

NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, AND OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 

to adopt Resolution No. 1215-1. 

 

Chairman Bankston asked if there were any questions. There were none.  

 

 The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. 

Commissioner Haynes was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” 

votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 

 Chairman Bankston reported that Resolution Nos. 1215-2 through 1215-14 were 

heard by a Committee of the Whole.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

5 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-2  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

HARRISON RECREATIONAL BOOSTER CLUB IN THE AMOUNT OF FIVE 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, 

to adopt Resolution No. 1215-2. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Haynes was absent. Commissioner Graham was not present for the Roll Call. Total 

present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-3  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

SIGNAL MOUNTAIN LIONS CHARITY IN THE AMOUNT OF FIVE THOUSAND 

DOLLARS ($5,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS 

ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT TWO. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1215-3. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

6 

 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Haynes was absent. Commissioner Graham was not present for the Roll Call. Total 

present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-4  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

SCENIC CITIES BEAUTIFUL COMMISSION IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE THOUSAND 

DOLLARS ($1,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS 

ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT SEVEN. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1215-4. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Haynes was absent. Commissioner Graham was not present for the Roll Call. Total 

present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

7 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-5  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

MOWBRAY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF TWELVE 

THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($12,300.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 

DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT ONE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, 

to adopt Resolution No. 1215-5. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Haynes was absent. Commissioner Graham was not present for the Roll Call. Total 

present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-6  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

SODDY DAISY FOOD BANK, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF SIX THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($6,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO 

DISTRICT ONE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1215-6. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

8 

 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Haynes was absent. Commissioner Graham was not present for the Roll Call. Total 

present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-7  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

FIRST THINGS FIRST, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($10,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED 

TO DISTRICT EIGHT. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1215-7. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Haynes was absent. Commissioner Graham was not present for the Roll Call. Total 

present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

9 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-8  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

GIRLS INCORPORATED OF CHATTANOOGA IN THE AMOUNT OF TEN 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT EIGHT. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1215-8. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Haynes was absent. Commissioner Graham was not present for the Roll Call. Total 

present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-9  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO THE 

NEXT DOOR, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 

FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT 

EIGHT. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1215-9.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

10 

 

 

Commissioner Mackey and Commissioner Beck stated their support for First 

Things First, Girl, Inc., and The Next Door, Inc. They thanked each nonprofit 

organization for their diligent efforts in the community.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner Haynes was absent. 

Commissioner Graham was not present for the Roll Call. Total present – 7. Total absent 

– 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-10  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

PARTNERSHIP FOR FAMILIES, CHILDREN AND ADULTS, INC., IN THE AMOUNT 

OF ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 

DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1215-10.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

11 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Haynes was absent. Commissioner Graham was not present for the Roll Call. Total 

present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-11  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA ON BEHALF OF MURRAY HILLS PARK IN THE 

AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED THIRTY THREE DOLLARS 

($2,533.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO 

DISTRICT FOUR. 

 
ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, 

to adopt Resolution No. 1215-11. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted 

on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being 

present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Haynes was absent. Commissioner Graham was not present for the Roll Call. Total 

present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1215-12  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

ONE HUNDRED BLACK MEN OF CHATTANOOGA, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

12 

 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, 

to adopt Resolution No. 1215-12.The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted 

on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being 

present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Haynes was absent. Commissioner Graham was not present for the Roll Call. Total 

present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-13  A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL OF 

DILLARD ELITE TRAINING BY DESIGN TO PROVIDE ONSITE FITNESS CLASS 

INSTRUCTION SUPPORT TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY WELLNESS CENTER AND 

TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1215-13. The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

13 

 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner Haynes was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 

1. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-14  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF HELTON 

CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE NOLAN 

ELEMENTARY  SCHOOL ADDITION AMOUNTING TO $4,500,000.00 AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1215-14. The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner Haynes was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 

1. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

14 

 

 Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 1215-15 through 1215-18 be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-15  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF DON 

LEDFORD AUTO PARK, LLC FOR TWO (2) REGULAR CAB PICKUP TRUCKS AND 

CDJR OF COLUMBIA FOR ONE (1) SUPER CREW CAB PICKUP TRUCK AND TO 

AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 

IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-16  A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE PERIOD OF OCTOBER 1, 2015, 

THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2015, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-17  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE UNIT PRICE BIDS 

OF CMS COMMUNICATIONS, OM OFFICE SUPPLY, INC. AND MXN 

CORPORATION BEGINNING DECEMBER 2, 2015, THROUGH DECEMBER 1, 2016, 

FOR DATA COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1215-18  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF CLEARLINE 

NETWORKS, LLC FOR INSTALLATION, TERMINATION, TESTING, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

15 

 

PROGRAMMING AND CERTIFICATION OF THE COMMUNICATIONS CABLING 

FOR GANNS MIDDLE VALLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL AMOUNTING TO 

$72,945.00 FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND TO 

AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 

IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

 Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee provided details 

regarding Resolution Nos. 1215-15 through 1215-18 and stated that the Finance 

Committee reviewed and recommended approval. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 1215-15 through 1215-18.  

 

Chairman Bankston asked if there were any questions. There were none.  

 

The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. 

Commissioner Haynes was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” 

votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

16 

 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission. 

 

Commissioner Mackey spoke about the University of Tennessee at Chattanooga 

football’s team and wished the team continued success. 

 

Commissioner Graham stated he had a wonderful Thanksgiving and invited 

everyone to the annual 24-hour long Mainx24 festival beginning Saturday, December 5th 

at 6:30 am on Main Street. The parade will begin at 10 am. He also extended an 

invitation to the Red Bank Christmas parade taking place this Saturday, December 5th at 

5:00 pm. 

 

Commissioner Graham stated his was disappointed with a recent Times Free 

Press news article published on November 26th regarding joint city and county projects. 

He referenced some of the insulting terminology used in the article. He reminded 

everyone that city and county government are batting for the same team. He stated he 

was looking forward to the upcoming year and looked forward to working with everyone. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

17 

 

 Commissioner Mackey noted that he had missed the article. In response to 

Commissioner Mackey’s request, Commissioner Graham clarified that the news article 

accused the county commission members of being liars.  

 

 Commissioner Boyd congratulated Tracy Malone, East Ridge High School Head 

Football Coach, on his victorious 12 -1 record and being named Coach of the Year. He 

reported Bass Pro Shop at Camp Jordan is continuing to build and the expansion of 

Camp Jordan Parkway is underway with an estimated spring 2016 completion date. 

 

 Commissioner Fairbanks invited everyone to attend Soddy Daisy’s annual 

Christmas parade this Sunday, December 6th at 2 pm. 

  

Commissioner Smedley invited everyone to attend Collegedale’s annual 

Christmas parade this Sunday, December 6th at 2 pm. There will also be two tree 

lightings, Collegedale Commons December 6th at 5:30 pm and Heritage Park December 

11th 6:00 pm. 

Commissioner Beck responded to comments made about the controversial 

Times Free Press news article. He spoke highly of the county commission’s 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

18 

 

transparency and asked people reading the article to be cautious and realize that the 

accusations made are a result of being misinformed.  

 

Mayor Coppinger invited the commission to attend a groundbreaking at the site 

of the Sale Creek Middle School on December 15th, at 10 am.  

 

Chairman Bankston spoke highly of the Collegedale parade and encouraged 

everyone to attend.  

 

Commissioner Bankston complimented Clerk Knowles and his Bonny Oaks office 

for their efficiency in renewing a vehicle tag Monday after the Thanksgiving holiday, 

which was also the busy end of the month renewal period. He noted he was the twenty-

fifth person in line and his wait time was under two minutes. Commissioner Smedley 

echoed Commissioner Bankston’s comments about the Clerk’s office. Clerk Knowles 

expressed appreciation for the comments. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 

19 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 

 There being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting in 

recess until Wednesday, December 9, 2015 at 9:30 AM. 

       

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
 
   

________  
Date  Clerk’s Initials   
 

 

 













No. 1215-19 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, AND THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 
NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED. 

   
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
“HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS,  said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE 
OF THE COUNTY CLERK” have given approved bonds for the office of 
Notary Public and have taken the oath of office; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
2.  That the persons listed on the “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE 

 COUNTY CLERK” relative to bonds given for the position of Notary Public are 
 hereby approved for such and the bonds are accepted and the oaths therefor are 
 approved as taken; and 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 3. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 













No. 1215-20 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                   (P.C. NO. 2015-118) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING THE APPROVAL OF A 
SPECIAL PERMIT FOR A SINGLE-WIDE 

MANUFACTURED HOME ON A TRACT OF LAND 
LOCATED AT 4603 CLONTS ROAD 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Billy Holland petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to grant the approval of a Special Permit for a Single-
Wide Manufactured Home on a tract of land located at 4603 Clonts Road, and said 
Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be denied; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Billy Holland requested that the County Commission consider said 
petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in 
Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on December 
16, 2015, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such 
hearing having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended to grant the approval of a Special Permit for a Single-Wide Manufactured 
Home on a tract of land located at 4603 Clonts Road.  An unplatted tract of land 
located at 4603 Clonts Road being the property described in Deed Book 8262, Page 
217, ROHC.  Tax Map 162-037 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 1215-21 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                            (P.C. NO. MR-2015-134) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A 
MANDATORY REFERRAL, PURSUANT TO T.C.A. 13-4-
104, FOR THE ABANDONMENT OF THE 11000 BLOCK 

OF BAUXITE ROAD 
 

 
 WHEREAS, Hamilton County Engineer/Todd Leamon, Public Works Director 
petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to grant 
approval of a Mandatory Referral, pursuant to T.C.A. 13-4-104, for the abandonment 
of the 11000 block of Bauxite Road, and said Planning Commission after hearing 
recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Hamilton County Engineer/Todd Leamon, Public Works Director                                     
requested that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has been 
published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the County 
Commission will hold a public hearing on December 16, 2015, concerning the 
passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such hearing having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended to grant approval of a Mandatory Referral, pursuant to T.C.A. 13-4-104, 
for the abandonment of the 11000 block of Bauxite Road.  Abandonment of the 11000 
block of Bauxite Road beginning at the east line of Tax Map 161-046 approximately 
841 feet from its intersection with the center line of Old East Brainerd Road, thence in 
a northwestwardly direction some 3,119 feet to a dead end.  Said street separates 
Tax Map 161-046 from 161-061 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT 



 

 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 1215-22A 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                   (P.C. NO. 2015-142) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO R-2 RESIDENTIAL 

DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2618 
OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Gregory R. Dortch petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-2 
Residential District, property located at 2618 Ooltewah-Ringgold Road, and said 
Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition for R-2 Residential 
District be denied and that a rezoning of R-1 Single Family Residential District be 
approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Gregory R. Dortch requested that the County Commission 
consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general 
circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing 
on December 16, 2015, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, 
and such hearing having been held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be 
amended to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-2 Residential District, property 
located at 2618 Ooltewah-Ringgold Road.  All that part of an unplatted tract of land 
which is currently zoned R-2, being part of the property described in Deed Book 9809, 
Page 12, ROHC.   Tax Map 160-038 (part) as shown on the attached map. 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 



 

 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 1215-22B 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                         P.C. NO. 2015-142) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

2618 OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Gregory R. Dortch petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-2 
Residential District, property located at 2618 Ooltewah-Ringgold Road, and said 
Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition for R-2 Residential 
District be denied and that a rezoning of R-1 Single Family Residential District be 
approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Gregory R. Dortch requested that the County Commission 
consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general 
circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing 
on December 16, 2015, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, 
and such hearing having been held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be 
amended to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single Family Residential 
District, property located at 2618 Ooltewah-Ringgold Road.  All that part of an 
unplatted tract of land which is currently zoned R-2, being part of the property 
described in Deed Book 9809, Page 12, ROHC.   Tax Map 160-038 (part) as shown 
on the attached map. 
 
 



 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 

















































































































No. 1215-24 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 

     
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

ZONING REGULATIONS, ARTICLE VII, 
SECTION 300(I)(1)(A) IN REFERENCE TO FEES 

FOR THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 
 WHEREAS, there is a proposal to amend the Hamilton County Zoning 
Regulations, Article VII, Section 300(I)(1)(A) in Reference to Fees for the Board of 
Zoning Appeals Public Hearing, and said Planning Commission after hearing 
recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in 
Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on December 
16, 2015, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such 
hearing having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended as follows: 
 
Amend Article VII, Section 300(I)(1)(a) Fees for Board of Appeals Public 
Hearings by deleting it in its entirety and substituting in lieu thereof the following: 
 
Fees for the Board of Appeals Public Hearings: 
 
The Building Commissioner (by and through the Director of Building Inspection), as 
agent, will collect a fee subject to Resolution as the Hamilton County Board of County 
Commissioners from time to time shall establish, that will more accurately reflect the 
costs associated with the identification of the property, subject to appeal, and the cost 



 

 

of notification of all property owners as required by the Regulations. 
  
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 





No. 1215-25 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF UP TO THREE THOUSAND ONE 
HUNDRED NINETY FIVE DOLLARS ($3,195.00) FROM DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS (AS 
ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT THREE) TO PURCHASE A SECURITY SYSTEM FOR HIXSON 
MIDDLE SCHOOL. 
 
WHEREAS, Hixson Middle School is in need of a security system; and 
 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Marty Haynes has expressed a desire to use up to Three Thousand One 

Hundred Ninety Five Dollars ($3,195.00) of discretionary bond funds as allotted to 
District Three to purchase said security system; and 

 
WHEREAS, this purchase has been approved by the Hamilton County Board of Education; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the expenditure of up to Three Thousand One Hundred Ninety Five Dollars ($3,195.00) in 
discretionary bond funds as allotted to District Three be approved to purchase a security system for 
Hixson Middle School. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 1215-26 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO AEGIS LAW ENFORCEMENT OF 
GREATER CHATTANOOGA, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($10,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT TWO. 

 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Jim Fields has expressed a desire to allocate Ten Thousand Dollars 

($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to AEGIS Law Enforcement of 
Greater Chattanooga, Inc., to assist with the purchase of firearm simulators; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga, Inc., to assist with the purchase of firearm 
simulators. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 



 

 

 
2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 

organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 1215-27 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO AEGIS LAW ENFORCEMENT OF 
GREATER CHATTANOOGA, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($5,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT ONE. 

 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Randy Fairbanks has expressed a desire to allocate Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to AEGIS Law Enforcement of 
Greater Chattanooga, Inc., to assist with the purchase of firearm simulators; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga, Inc., to assist with the purchase of firearm 
simulators. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 



 

 

 
2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 

organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 1215-28 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO AEGIS LAW ENFORCEMENT OF 
GREATER CHATTANOOGA, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($5,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT NINE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Chester Bankston has expressed a desire to allocate Five Thousand 

Dollars ($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to AEGIS Law 
Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga, Inc., to assist with the purchase of firearm 
simulators; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga, Inc., to assist with the purchase of firearm 
simulators. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 



 

 

Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 
 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 1215-29 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO AEGIS LAW ENFORCEMENT OF 
GREATER CHATTANOOGA, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($5,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT SEVEN. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Sabrena Turner-Smedley has expressed a desire to allocate Five Thousand 

Dollars ($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to AEGIS Law 
Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga, Inc., to assist with the purchase of firearm 
simulators; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga, Inc., to assist with the purchase of firearm 
simulators. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 



 

 

Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 
 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 1215-30 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO AEGIS LAW ENFORCEMENT OF 
GREATER CHATTANOOGA, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($2,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate Two Thousand Dollars 

($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to AEGIS Law Enforcement of 
Greater Chattanooga, Inc., to assist with the purchase of firearm simulators; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga, Inc., to assist with the purchase of firearm 
simulators. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 



 

 

 
2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 

organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 1215-31 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 
CHEROKEE AREA COUNCIL, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($2,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED 
TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate Two Thousand Five 

Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Boy Scouts of 
America Cherokee Area Council, Inc., to assist with BSA ScoutReach; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be 
appropriated to Boy Scouts of America Cherokee Area Council, Inc., to assist with BSA ScoutReach. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 1215-32 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO CHURCHVILLE NEIGHBORHOOD 
ASSOCIATION, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($1,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate One Thousand Five 

Hundred Dollars ($1,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Churchville 
Neighborhood Association, Inc., to assist with programming for Young Ladies of Power; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($1,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be 
appropriated to Churchville Neighborhood Association, Inc., to assist with programming for Young 
Ladies of Power. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 



 

 

Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 
 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 1215-33 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO A BETTER TOMORROW, INC., IN THE 
AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate Two Thousand Dollars 

($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to A Better Tomorrow, Inc., to 
assist with their Project Evolution program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to A 
Better Tomorrow, Inc., to assist with their Project Evolution program. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 1215-34 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO OLIVET BAPTIST CHURCH OF 
CHATTANOOGA, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($2,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate Two Thousand Five 

Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Olivet Baptist 
Church of Chattanooga, Inc., to assist with their anti-gang program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be 
appropriated to Olivet Baptist Church of Chattanooga, Inc., to assist with their anti-gang program. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 







































No. 1215-35 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR AND COUNTY CLERK TO ENTER 
INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH BUSINESS INFORMATION SYSTEMS (BIS) TO PROVIDE 
PAYMENT CARD PROCESSING FOR THE COUNTY CLERK’S MOTOR VEHICLE TITLING 
AND REGISTRATION SYSTEM AND AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION 
OF TWENTY-SEVEN (27) EMV DEVICES WITH STANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $24,894.00 
AND TO AMEND THE COUNTY CLERK’S GENERAL FUND OPERATING BUDGET FROM 
PREVIOUSLY UNBUDGETED FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $24,894.00 AND AUTHORIZING 
THE COUNTY MAYOR AND COUNTY CLERK TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution No. 410-18 authorized the County Mayor and County Clerk to enter into 

a contract with Business Information Systems (BIS) for the licensing and 
maintenance of a motor vehicle system software package; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution No. 315-16 authorized the County Mayor and County Clerk to renew the 

contract with Business Information Systems (BIS) for the annual maintenance of the 
motor vehicle system software package for a period of five years; and 

 
WHEREAS,  in order to enhance data security and prevent unauthorized copying or counterfeiting 

of cards when used for in-person credit card transactions, the credit card industry is 
now issuing new cards which contain an embedded microchip, also known as an 
EMV card, in addition to the familiar magnetic stripe; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the County, as a merchant who accepts credit cards, is required to install new credit 

card equipment to meet the internationally agreed upon EMV standards in order to 
limit financial liability to the County; and 

 
WHEREAS,  Business Information Systems (BIS) is now considered to be a sole source for 

providing payment card processing within the Motor Vehicle Titling & Registration 
System; and 

 
WHEREAS, the credit card processing fees from Business Information Systems (BIS) are in line 

with other credit card processing fees throughout the County and the price for the 
purchase and installation of the new equipment is deemed reasonable; and,  



 

 

 
 
WHEREAS, the County Clerk’s General Fund Operating Budget will be amended from 

previously unbudgeted funds in the amount of $24,894.00. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IS SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the proposal from Business Information Systems (BIS) to provide payment card processing for the 
County Clerk’s Motor Vehicle Titling and Registration System and for the purchase and installation of 
the necessary twenty seven (27) EMV devices with stands in the amount of $24,894.00 is hereby 
accepted and to amend the County Clerk’s General Fund Operating Budget amounting to $24,894.00, 
and authorizing the County Mayor and County Clerk to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 



 
  
CREDIT CARD AND ONLINE SERVICES AND SUPPORT AGREEMENT  
  
Agreement made this _____ day of _______________, 2015 between Business 
Information Systems “BIS”(“Company”) with offices at 333 Industrial Park Road, 
Piney Flats, Tennessee, 37686, and, the Office of the County Clerk (“County 
Clerk”) of the county of Hamilton (“County”), state of Tennessee.   

  
 WHEREAS, the County Clerk desires to obtain the services of the Company; and  
 
  
 WHEREAS, the Company has expertise which may be valuable to the County Clerk and desires to use such expertise to develop 
and maintain an Credit Card and online payment Recording System in conjunction with the Motor Vehicle Titling & Registration 
System; and 
 
  
 WHEREAS, the County Clerk desires to utilize the Company to maintain a Web Site for the online payment of fees associated 
with the Motor Vehicle Titling & Registration System in the office of the County Clerk; and  
 
 
 WHEREAS, the agreement between the County Clerk and the Company has a fixed cost to the County Clerk as detailed below, 
notwithstanding any provisions in the Merchant Processing Agreement to the contrary. 
 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein and other good and valuable 
consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, it is agreed as follows;  
 
  
1.    SCOPE OF WORK  

The Company shall be authorized to provide to the general public, Internet or World Wide Web site access to the County 
Clerk’s electronic database of Motor Vehicle Titling & Registration documents.  The County Clerk understands that the 
Company will charge a service fee for this access and will not be required to remit any funds to the County for this service.  
The following is the features of BIS available to county:  
  
Features and Internet services desired:                                     COST  
 
 Internet connection           $ County’s Current Connection  
 BIS Merchant ACH Processing              2.0% of transaction   

VISA, MasterCard, and Discover  
  
The off-site copy of the database shall be updated as often as allowed by the County Clerk.  In addition, the Company will be 
allowed a “read only” copy of the database.   

  
2.    INDEMNITY  

The Company agrees to defend and hold harmless, at its own cost and expense any claim or action against the County Clerk 
and Hamilton County, TN, its agents and/or affiliated offices and/or employees harmless for any loss or damage in 
connection with/or arising out of default or negligence of the Company.  

  
3.    PROPRIETARY RIGHTS  

The Company acknowledges that it shall not receive any proprietary rights in the documents of the County office.  These 
documents shall remain sole and exclusive property of the County.   

   
4.  TERM AND TERMINATION  

This agreement shall commence on this ____ day of _______, 2015, and shall continue in full force and effect through June 
30, 2020.   

  
5.  ASSIGNMENT  

This agreement shall be binding upon the parties respective successors and permitted assigns.  Neither party may assign the 
agreement or end its rights or obligations herein without the prior written consent of the other party.   

 



      
6.     NOTICES  

Any notices or communication under this agreement shall be in writing and shall be hand delivered or sent by registered 
mail, return receipt requested to the party receiving such communication at the address for either party on the front of this 
agreement, or such other address as either party may in the future specify to the other party.    

  
7.     GOVERNING LAW  

This agreement shall be governed and construed under the laws of the State of Tennessee.  
  
8.     MODIFICATIONS  

No modifications, amendment, supplement to or waiver of this agreement or any schedule hereunder, or any of their 
provisions shall be binding upon the parties hereto unless made in writing and duly signed by both parties.  

  
9.     WAIVER  

A waiver of either party to exercise any right provided for hearing shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any right hereunder.  
  
               
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, each act under due and proper authority, have executed this agreement as of the date 
first written herein and above.  
  
Business Information Systems         Hamilton County Clerk    
  
By:                By:   __________________________________  
   
Name:  Stoney Hale           Name:  Bill Knowles  
  
Title:   Solutions Consultant         Title:  County Clerk  



No. 1215-36 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO DECLARE THE MAYFIELD ANNEX PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
123 EAST 7TH  STREET, OWNED BY HAMILTON COUNTY, AS SURPLUS, TO 
ACCEPT A PROPOSAL FROM LAMP POST PROPERTIES, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO NEGOTIATE, ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE A REAL ESTATE 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE SALE PRICE OF $200,000 (NET PROCEEDS TO 
HAMILTON COUNTY) AND TO SIGN ALL CLOSING DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
CONVEY SAID PROPERTY. 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County (County) owns property known as the Mayfield Annex 

located at 123 East 7th Street, identified as State Tax Map No. 145D-A-008; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, due to the relocation of County offices, the building is currently vacant and is 

no longer useful for current or future needs of the County; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on June 10, 2015, the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners approved 

Resolution No. 615-16A, authorizing a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) between Hamilton County and RiverCity Company (RiverCity) to 
work in cooperation to market said property for sale and redevelopment; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  in August of 2015, RiverCity issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ)        

resulting in the submission of three (3) proposals; and,     
 
WHEREAS,  upon review of said proposals and interviews with each proposer by 

RiverCity and County staff, the acceptance of the proposal received from 
Lamp Post Properties is recommended for the sale price of $200,000, (net 
proceeds to the County), with the proposed redevelopment use, investment 
and economic impact information being more particularly described in the 
attached proposal summary; and, 

 
WHEREAS, acceptance of said proposal from Lamp Post Properties and sale of property is 



 

 

in the best interest of the citizens of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
SESSION ASSEMBLED:  
 

That the former Mayfield Annex property, located at 123 East 7th Street, 
owned by Hamilton County, be declared surplus, to accept the proposal 
submitted by Lamp Post Properties and to authorize the County Mayor to 
negotiate, enter into and execute a real estate purchase agreement for the sale 
price of $200,000 (net proceeds to Hamilton County), and to sign all closing 
documents necessary to convey said property.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 



Lamp Post Properties 
Redevelopment Summary 
 
for the 
 
Mayfield Annex 
123 7th Street 
Chattanooga, TN 37405 
 
 

Owner: Lamp Post Properties 
 
Premises:  123 E 7th Street, Tax ID #145D A 008 
 
Purchase Price: $200,000 NET to Hamilton County (Purchaser to pay all Closing Costs, 

Attorney’s Fees and approximately $8,000 in current Storm Water Fees) 
 
Program:  Mixed-Use Retail/Commercial and Office 
  
Jobs: 75, up to 150 at full capacity 
 
Estimated Investment: $3,000,000 (hard cost) 
 
Estimated RE Taxes: $61,000 total annual (based on Estimated Investment above) 
 $33,000 County portion ($16,000 School portion) 
 
Construction Length: 12 months, projected to start summer 2016 
 
Projected Opening: Summer 2017 
 
Summary Intent: The project will be a joint venture between Lamp Post Properties and a fast 

growing social media-focused digital agency that focuses on providing social 
media and strategy services to Fortune 500 companies.  This company will be 
the anchor tenant and their southeast regional headquarters with approximately 
75 employees by 2017.  The partnership will create a dynamic incubator space 
for startups from Lamp Post Group.  Some startups that participate in the 
incubator will move from larger metropolitan areas to grow in Chattanooga. 
Others may be from Chattanooga or the region. The incubator may have 
anywhere from 25 to 50 employees.  The ground floor will be activated by retail 
and/or restaurant use. 

 



No. 1215-37 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY RESCUE 
SERVICE TO SELL A 1999 GMC SUBURBAN WHICH IS CO-TITLED 
WITH HAMILTON COUNTY GOVERNMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 
WHEREAS, the 1999 GMC Suburban, Tag # GW 8988, VIN # 1GKFK16R0XJ33688, 

mileage of 168,715 currently titled to Hamilton County & Chattanooga-
Hamilton County Rescue Service has become uneconomical to maintain and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the  desires that said vehicle be declared surplus and sold, and when sold, the 

proceeds there from used towards the acquisition of rescue equipment for the 
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Rescue Service; and. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN  
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
      

(1)  That Hamilton County’s interest in said vehicle be terminated by sale in an “as is” 
condition; and, 
 

(2) That if sold by Chattanooga-Hamilton County Rescue Service, said vehicle be sold in 
a commercially reasonable manner and the proceeds be utilized to purchase needed 
rescue equipment for Chattanooga-Hamilton County Rescue Service. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 1215-38 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED 
LIMITS" SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROAD AND TO 
ESTABLISH A SPEED LIMIT THEREFORE: Boulder Creek Trail. 
 
WHEREAS, Boulder Creek Trail is in the 3rd Civil District, the 1st County Commission 

District in the Boulder Pass at the Canyons Subdivision, on State Tax Map 
Number 81, has a 50 foot right-of-way, an 8 inch stone base, a 2 inch plant mix 
pavement with concrete curbs and was built by Hedgecoth Construction and 
Card Paving Co. for the developer Pratt & Associates LLC; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Boulder Creek Trail leads from Clear Canyon Drive west 0.13 miles to a 

temporary turnaround; and,  
 
WHEREAS,  the above named road has been inspected by the Hamilton County Division of 

Public Works and meets current County Subdivision Regulations. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 1. That the above named road be declared a district road, 2nd class. 
 

2. That the speed limit on said road shall be 20 M.P.H., and that violation of the 
same, when posted, shall be a misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided 
by the laws of this State.  

 
 3. That the "Master List of Roads and Speed Limits" is hereby amended. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 1215-39 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 16, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED 
LIMITS” SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROADS AND TO 
ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFORE: Hollyhock Lane, and an extension of 
Trout Lily  Drive. 
 
 
WHEREAS, The above listed roads are new subdivision roads in the Meadow Stream 

Subdivision and have been inspected by the Hamilton County Division of 
Public Works and meet current County Subdivision Regulations; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the list of roads, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference thereto as though fully and completely copied verbatim herein, 
completely describes the amendments to be made to the “Master List of Roads 
and Speed Limits”. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 1. That the above named roads be declared district roads, 2nd class. 
 

2. That the attached amendments to the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” 
are hereby adopted and approved. 

 
 3. That the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” is hereby amended. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 16, 2015 

  
Date 

 



 
ROAD NAME                                     DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Hollyhock Lane Hollyhock Lane  is in the 2nd Civil District, 

the 9th County Commission District, in the 
Meadow Stream Subdivision on State Tax 
Map Number 114, leading from Trout Lily 
Drive south 0.24 miles to a turnaround, has a 
50 foot right-of-way, a 8 inch stone base, a 2 
inch plant mix pavement with concrete 
curbs, and was built by McDaniel & Son 
Construction and Lofty Grading & Paving 
Inc. for the developer Rogers Family Farm 
Inc. 

 
 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 

M.P.H. and that violation of the same, when 
posted, shall be a misdemeanor and 
punishable as such as provided by the laws 
of the State.  

 
Trout Lily Drive Resolution No. 414-9 dated April 2, 2014 

shows the mileage of Trout Lily Drive as 
being 0.73 miles, described as leading from 
Tranquility Drive north to a temporary 
turnaround and south to a turnaround; 
whereas, a new extension of Trout Lily 
Drive was constructed leading from the 
existing Trout Lily Drive 0.06 miles to a 
temporary turnaround, has a 50 foot  right-
of-way, a 8 inch stone base, a 2 inch plant 
mix pavement with concrete curbs, and was 
built by McDaniel & Son Construction and 
Lofty Grading & Paving for the developer 
Rogers Family Farm Inc.; and, whereas, 
Trout Lily Drive is in the 2nd  Civil District, 
the 9th  County Commission District in the 
Meadow Stream Subdivision on State Tax 
Map Number 114, leading from Tranquility 
Drive north  0.79 miles  to a temporary 
turnaround. 

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 25 

M.P.H. and that violation of the same, when 
posted, shall be a misdemeanor and 
punishable as such as provided by the laws 
of the State. 

 
 


	12-16-15 Public Agenda Revised
	1215-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - November 25, 2015 _1985_11-25-15 Recessed
	1215-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - November 25, 2015 _1986_11-25-15 Agenda
	1215-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - December 2, 2015 _1987_12-02-15 Regular
	1215-_S_Report_Northwest Utility District Board of Commissioners Appointment and reappointments_1982_Northwest Utility District Board of Commissioners
	1215-_S_Report_Criminal Court Clerks Report August September and October 2015_1984_Criminal Court Clerks Report August September October 2015
	1215-_S_Report_Order of Designation Planning Commission - Todd Leamon December 14, 2015_1999_Order of Designation Planning Commission - Todd Leamon December 14, 2015
	1215-19_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1989_12-16-15
	1215-19_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1989_12-16-15A
	1215-20_R_Zoning_Rezoning_1993_118
	1215-20_S_Zoning_Rezoning_1993_2015-118
	1215-21_R_Zoning_Rezoning_1994_134
	1215-21_S_Zoning_Rezoning_1994_MR-2015-134
	1215-22A_R_Zoning_Rezoning_1995_142A
	1215-22A_S_Zoning_Rezoning_1995_2015-142
	1215-22B_R_Zoning_Rezoning_1996_142B
	1215-22B_S_Zoning_Rezoning_1996_2015-142
	1215-23_R_Zoning_Rezoning_1997_Resolution County Flood Amend
	1215-23_S_Zoning_Rezoning_1997_Nov County Flood Res
	1215-24_R_Zoning_Rezoning_1998_Resolution Boza
	1215-24_S_Zoning_Rezoning_1998_Nov County BOZA Res
	1215-25_R_Commissioner Haynes_Purchase of a security system for Hixson Middle School_1980_Comm Haynes Hixson MS
	1215-26_R_Commissioner Fields_Appropriation for AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga Inc_1979_Comm Fields AEGIS
	1215-26_S_Commissioner Fields_Appropriation for AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga Inc_1979_0985_001
	1215-27_R_Commissioner Fairbanks_Appropriation to AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga Inc_1991_Comm Fairbanks AEGIS1
	1215-27_S_Commissioner Fairbanks_Appropriation to AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga Inc_1991_0985_001
	1215-28_R_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation for AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga Inc_1978_Comm Bankston AEGIS
	1215-28_S_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation for AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga Inc_1978_0985_001
	1215-29_R_Commissioner Turner-Smedley_Appropriation for AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga Inc_1988_Comm Smedley AEGIS2
	1215-29_S_Commissioner Turner-Smedley_Appropriation for AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga Inc_1988_0985_001
	1215-30_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga Inc_1977_Comm Mackey AEGIS
	1215-30_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for AEGIS Law Enforcement of Greater Chattanooga Inc_1977_0985_001
	1215-31_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Boy Scouts of America Cherokee Area Council Inc_1971_Comm Mackey Boy Scouts
	1215-31_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Boy Scouts of America Cherokee Area Council Inc_1971_0947_001
	1215-32_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Churchville Neighborhood Association Inc_1975_Comm Mackey Churchville2
	1215-32_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Churchville Neighborhood Association Inc_1975_0978_001
	1215-33_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for A Better Tomorrow Inc_1976_Comm Mackey A Better Tomorrow
	1215-33_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for A Better Tomorrow Inc_1976_0983_001
	1215-34_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Olivet Baptist Church of Chattanooga Inc_1992_Comm Mackey Olivet BC
	1215-34_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Olivet Baptist Church of Chattanooga Inc_1992_1001_001
	1215-35_R_Bill Knowles_BIS Credit Card Contract and Machines_1983_RES  BIS Credit Card Processing  Equipment Purchase final
	1215-35_S_Bill Knowles_BIS Credit Card Contract and Machines_1983_Hamilton Internet processing agreement for BIS review - revised 12-4-2015
	1215-36_R_Todd Leamon_Enter into and execute a Real Estate Purchase Agreement to sell the Mayfield Annex_1990_Res  Lamp Post-Mayfield 12.03.15
	1215-36_S_Todd Leamon_Enter into and execute a Real Estate Purchase Agreement to sell the Mayfield Annex_1990_LPP Mayfield Summary Resolution --revised 12.02
	1215-37_R_Don Allen_Surplus of a co-titled vehicle_1951_Rescue Suburban
	1215-38_R_Todd Leamon_Amend Master List of Roads and Speed Limits_1973_BoulderCreekTrail
	1215-39_R_Todd Leamon_Amend the Master List of Roads and Speed Limits_1974_Meadowstream_Hollyhock_TroutLily
	1215-39_S_Todd Leamon_Amend the Master List of Roads and Speed Limits_1974_MeadowStream12_11-15_supportingdocuments

